Willamette University



1929

930

Address	In Case of Accident Notify	Home Address	Class	SS	Z
ld	0	nc	as	le	B
re	as	le	02	B	0
02	e	A		A	10
1	of	do		de	4
	P	lre		ir	4.
-	00	20		200	0
	bid				A
1	er	1	1	N	4
	t			1	*
1	Z	1		0	4
1	oti			CH	IDENTIFICATION
1	fy	1			CH
1				5	V
		100		N	I E
1	1			6	ME
		1		70	4 5
1	1	1		10	F
	1			9	2 5
1	1	-		4	Z Z
1		1		2	C
1		1	1	4	P
1				1	ho
		1		79	ne
1	1	-		11	-
				1	No
1	1	-		14.	8
		1		1	
1		1		2	
		-		Salem Address tos Meany Mut.	31
		,			7
					Name Mulana a. Muller Phone No. 25.37-





Willamette University Student Handbook



1929-1930

Published By

THE ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY OF WILLAMETTE UNIVERSITY

EVELYN HIGH, Editor

VOLUME XXXVI

CONTENTS

	Page
Athletics	33
Athletic Organizations	26
Blue Key Welcome	10
Calendar	
Church Directory	69
Clubs and Societies	29
College Calendar	7
Constitution	44
Cubs' Greeting	11
Dr. Doney's Welcome	8
Football Schedule	32
Forensics	
Fraternities	20
Honorary Organizations	24
Musical Organizations	27
Prizes	
Publications	25
Recitation Schedule	72
Songs	
Sororities	21
Student Body Greeting	9
Telephone Directory	71
Traditions	19
Who's Who at W. U.	14
Yells	
Y. M. C. A. Welcome	13
V W C A Welcome	12

FOREWORD

The Student Handbook is the first greeting from the University and the Associated Students to you who are entering Willamette this fall. Its purpose is to acquaint you briefly with the functions, traditions, organizations, and leaders of the college you have entered. The hope is that through its pages you may catch a vision of a greater Willamette, and by so doing enrich yourself with its traditions, ideals, and spirit.

THE EDITOR

1929---CALENDAR---1930

JULY							
S	M	T	W	T	F	S	
		2					
7	8	9	10	11	12	13	
14	15	16	17	8	19	20	
		23					
28	29	30	31				

AUGUST

****				1	4	0
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	80	31

SEPTEMBER

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	2	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30					

OCTOBER

		1	2	3	4	5
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	2,2	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30	31		

NOVEMBER

****					1	2
3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	2,2	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30

DECEMBER

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	2	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

	J	AN	UA	RY	7	
3	M	T	W	T	F	- 5
	2		1	2	3	1

			1	2	3	4
5	6	. 7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	- 8
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	

FEBRUARY

						1
2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	

MARCH

****						1
. 2	3	4	5	6	7	8
9	10	11	12	13	14	15
16	17	18	19	20	21	22
23	24	25	26	27	28	29
30	31					

APRIL

****		1	2	3	4	0
6	7	8	9	10	11	12
13	14	15	16	17	18	19
20	21	2,2	23	24	25	26
27	28	29	30			

MAY

****				1	2	3
4	5	6	7	8	9	10
11	12	13	14	15	16	17
18	19	20	21	22	23	24
25	26	27	28	29	30	31.

JUNE

1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
20	20	-				

COLLEGE CALENDAR

1929

- 12 Sept. Thurs.—Freshman Days begin, 9:00 A. M.; English Classifying Examination, 1:30 P. M.
- 16 Sept., Mon.-Registration for Freshmen.
- 17 Sept., Tues.—Registration for other students.
- 18 Sept., Wed .- Recitations begin, 7:45 A. M.
- 28-29 Nov., Thur., Fri.—Thanksgiving holiday.
- 20 Dec., Fri.—Christmas recess begins, 12:00 M.

1930

- 6 Jan., Mon.—Christmas recess ends, 7:45 A. M.
- 27-31 Jan.—Examinations for First Semester.
- 27-31 Jan.—Registration for Second Semester.
 - 3 Feb., Mon.—Recitations for Second Semester begins.
- 15-23 Mar .- Spring Recess.
- 16 June, Mon .- Commencement Day.

WELCOME

With all heartiness we welcome the new students to Willamette University; with equal warmth we are pleased by the return

of others. For new and old, the beginning of a college year must be momentous. What the college does for you will depend on what you do for the college. No great ingenuity is required to invent excuses for failures, but excuses do not change results A student can do himself no better service than to have no excuses.

A college is a place of strong temptations, good and bad; a person should be wise enough to seek only the upward temptations. Be a genuine part of the school, commit



Dr. Carl G. Doney President W. U.

yourself to it completely, "get wet all over" immediately—thus will you give and receive joyously, abundantly. Hold fast the Christian life and it will hold you to the integrity which is greatness. We join you and bid you welcome in the high enterprise of attaining the truth which confers power and liberty.

Sincerely yours.

CARL G. DONEY.

GREETINGS

Greetings, Class of 1933. You are welcome to Willamette. Let us hope that your stay with us is filled with the abundant

blessings of the lasting qualities of life. which can be had only through perseverence, diligence, intellectual research. and introspection. The University honors scholarship. May scholarship honor von.

The sooner one

becomes acquainted with his immediate surroundings in a new situation, the sooner one succeeds. Your success here depends upon how quickly you catch onto the inevitable swing of the spirit of the University. for when you find that spirit, you start



William Mumford

to become ecquainted with your new situation. College spirit and success go hand in The more spriit a school has, the hand. more successful it is. The more spirit you have, the more successful you will be.

Then throw yourself into the spirit of the thing. Live the life of your University, Live the life of the class of 1933. Live the life of a clean-cut, wholesome, Christian student. Success will then be yours for the asking.

> BILL MUMFORD. President A. S. W. U.

WELCOME!

It is with great pleasure indeed that the Willamette chapter of the Blue Key national service fraternity extends to the new students of Willamette

University a most hearty welcome.

Blue Key is an upperclassmen's organization which has as its motto and purpose "service." So not only do we welcome you, but also we offer you our aid and help at all times. We want you to feel free to ask a Blue Kev man when there is anvthing you need. Tell a Blue Key man about anything which you think ought to be done for the benefit of the students or to the betterment of old Willamette.



George Poor

So again we say "Welcome!" and ask that you do not fail to take advantage of the offer of our services.

Cordially yours,

GEORGE L. POOR,

President Blue Key.

GREETINGS-FRESHMEN

You have honored this school with your presence; yet after all you owe Willamette something more than your tuition, you owe

Willamette a respect for her traditions. a spirit of loyalty, and a desire to help the University in all ways possible. You are doubtless aware of the position accorded the Freshmen at most universities; Willamette is not an exception. The Cubs are here to try to help give you the right start. Although we have seemingly paradoxical duties to perform we want you to remember that we are always ready to give you real help. You are eninto a new tering and strange life, con-



Charles Campbell

duct yourself accordingly. May you attain that success of which we know you are capable.

CHARLES CAMPBELL.

President of the Cubs.

Until Homecoming Freshmen are requested to:

Carry the Handbook.

Boys to wear a cardinal and gold cap of the kind which may be purchased at the University Book Store.

The Cubs have made these requests.

WELCOME

The Y. W. C. A. extends a welcome to you who are entering Willamette for the

first time.

We hope that each girl will come to realize that the Y. W. is not an organization-it is a fellowship.

The Y. W. belongs to you, and we hope that you will help us, so that through our combined efforts may really find a fellowship with each other and with God.

Use our Y room. and get acquainted with the girls you meet there.

We hope to know each of you so that we may better work and play together during this coming year.



Dorothy Taylor

Sincerely. DOROTHY TAYLOR. President Y. W. C. A.

PURPOSE

We unite in the desire to realize full and creative life through a growing knowledge of God.

We determine to make this life possible

for all people.

In this task we seek to understand Jesus and to follow Him.

WELCOME

Welcome, Students—those of you who are returning to Willamette, but especially to the newcomers, the class of 1933.

The purpose of the Y. M. C. A. is to help the student in his religious life on the campus, in attaining to the goal and ideal as set by the great teacher. The University maintains a definitely Christian tone, and the Y. M. C. A. is an organization in which the men may express themselves in this way.

We feel that to justify our existence we must be of service to the students individually and to the school. We have mapped out a dynamic program for this



Leslie Manker

year of weekly and monthly meetings, some of which will be definitely devotional while others will be of general interest to all the men. A prominent place will be given to the recreational part of student life also. Through co-operation with the National Association we will bring some eminent leaders to the campus to stimulate our thinking.

Again, welcome to Willamette. Let us help you in any way possible and give us the benefit of your enthusiasm and ambition. Sincerely.

LESLIE MANKER, President Y. M. C. A.

WHO'S WHO AT W. U.

A. S. W. U.

President	William Mumford
First Vice President	Margaret Polt
Second Vice President	Dwight Adams
Secretary	Lillian Scott

Collegian

Editor	Steph	en Mergler
Manager	 Harold	Tomlinson

Wallulah

Editor	Roy Harland	d
Manager	Warren McMinime	e

Willamette Song Book

Editor	 (Frace	Henderson

Student Handbook

J	E	d	11	ti	0	r		×.	ď		4	 -	-	-	i						-			-			F	V	e	1	y	n	1	1	i	g	h	1

Senior Class

President	Hugh	Currin
Vice President	Emily	Brown
Secretary	Leona	Clothier
	Joseph	Silver
	The second second	

Junior Class

President	Joseph Felton
Vice President	Harriette Hageman
Secretary	.Dorothy Pemberton
Treasurer	Sam Bowe

Sophomore Class

	-	
President	Wesley	Roeder
Vice President	Helen	Stiles
Secretary	Margaret	Eddy
Treasurer	Clarenc	e Poor

Beta Chi

President	Katherine Everett
Vice President	Florence Power
Manager	Frances McGilvra
Secretary	
Treasurer	Emily Brown

Delta Phi

President	Rae	Windust
Vice PresidentP	auline	Findley
Manager	Marga	ret Bolt
SecretaryG	ertrud	e Oehler
Treasurer	Hele	ne Price

Alpha Phi Alpha

President	Dorothy	Gordon
Vice President	Georgia	Striker
Manager	Helen	Curry
Secretary	Helen	Stiles
Treasurer	Marie	Foster

Daleth Teth Gimel

President	Marion Morange
	Virginia Slusser
Secretary	Margaret Schreiber
Treasurer	Helen Hughes

Lausanne Hall

President	Helen	Hughes
Vice President	Els	ie Allen
Secretary-Treasurer	Lois	Barker

Sigma Tau

President	William Mumford
First Vice President	Collas Marsters
Second Vice President	Homer Roberts
Manager	
Secretary	John Gilhousen

Alpha Psi Delta

President	Lawrence Winslow
First Vice President	Bernard Newby
Second Vice President	Howard Miller
Manager	Paul Geddes
Secretary	Clark Roberts

Kappa Gamma Rho

President	George Poor
Vice President	
Manager	LaRaut Lewis
Secretary	Alfred King
Treasurer	Cecil Harmon

Delta Theta Phi

Dean	Dark Street	Kenneth	Inman

Tribune		Jesse	Turner
	Rolls		
	f the Exchecqu		
	e Ritual		
Pailiff		Warren Mcl	Inimee

Pi Gamma Mu

President.	 Dr.	S.	B.	La	ughlin
Secretary.	 D	r.	R.	M.	Gatke

Blue Key Fraternity

President	George Poor
Vice President	Paul Geddes
Secretary	.Frank Van Dyke
Treasurer	Stephen Mergler

Theta Alpha Phi

President	Fran	nk Alfred
Secretary-Treasurer	Ivan	MacIver
Faculty AdvisorDean	F. M.	Erickson

Science Club

President	Donna	Hildesheim
Vice President		
Secretary-Treasurer	Hel	en Hughes

W Club

President	Lawrence	Winslow
Vice President	Paul	Ackerman
Secretary-Treasurer	Albert	Haworth

W. A. A.

President	Emily Brown
Vice President	Marvell Edwards
Secretary	Alvina Breithaupt
Treasurer	.Rosalind Van Winkle
Hike Master	Muriel White

Men's Glee Club

President	Walter	Kaufman
Vice President	John	Gilhousen
Manager	Howa	rd Miller
Secretary-Treasurer	Lawrence	e Deacon

Wesleyans

President	Edwin Rounds
Vice President	
Secretary and Reporter	Norman Sorenson
Treasurer	
Devotional Chairman	Carl Blackler

Y. W. C. A.

President	Dorothy Taylor
Vice President	
Secretary	
Treasurer	Eloise White
Program	
World Fellowship	
Social Service	Marjorie Nelson
Social	Louise Brown
Association Rooms	
Seabeck	Virginia Slusser
Finance	Dorothy Gordon
Girl Reserves	Doris Clarke
Religious Education	Katherine Everett

Y. M. C. A.

President	Leslie Manker
Vice President	Stephen Mergler
Secretary	John Gilhousen
Treasurer	
Social	
Publicity	
Christian Education	
Foreign Student Rep	Chai Whan Lee
Campus Service	Francis DeHarpport
Finance	
Faculty Representative	Prof. F. D. Leamer

Other organizations will elect officers this fall.

TRADITIONS

A smile and "Hello" are expected from every student at all times and without exception.

Rise when "The Old Historic Temple" is sung.

Learn the yells and songs in this book.

Freshmen do not enter or leave chapel by the side doors.

Only Seniors use the Senior bench.

Only upperclassmen wear corduroys.

Freshmen do not wear high school pins, rings, or emblems.

Students do not smoke on the campus.

Street shoes are not worn on the gym floor.

Go to all Student Body and Class meetings.

Each student is a member of a Christian organizatoin.

Student's mail addressed to Willamette University is placed in the alphabetical mail boxes on the first floor of Eaton Hall.

Attend all rallies and games.

Freshmen are required to do a certain amount of work on the campus and athletic field.

Willamette students are good sports in all inter-collegiate contests.

The library is a place for study.

Do not cut classes.

Uphold the Honor Code.

Every student a booster.

FRATERNITIES

Sigma Tau. 1919

Alpha Psi Delta, 1920

895 Chemeketa Street......Phone 549

Kappa Gamma Rho, 1921

INTER-FRATERNITY PLEDGING RULES

Pledging—The act of pledging shall consist of a man wearing the official pledge pin of the fraternity and signing the official pledge card of the fraternity.

Time of Pledging—No man shall be offered the opportunity to pledge any fraternity until he shall have completed registration. Completion of registration means the making of final arrangements with the business office in regard to the payment of tuition. Any violation of this provision on the part of any fraternity shall mean the forfeiture of the right to pledge the man in question for a period of thirty days.

Breaking of Pledge—No man may accept a bid from any fraternity after having broken a pledge to another fraternity until a period of ninety days has elapsed after the breaking of his first pledge. except on the condition that he be given a release by the fraternity to which he was first pledged.

Enforcement—These rules shall be enforced by the Inter-fraternity Council with provision for appeal as enumerated in the Constitution of the Inter-fraternity Council.

SORORITIES

Beta Chi, 1919

1445 State Street Phone 1442

Delta Phi, 1920

1530 Court Street Phone 1378

Alpha Phi Alpha, 1923

1190 Oak Street Phone 1717

INTER-SORORITY RUSHING RULES

The sorority rush season for the year 19,29-1930 shall be from September 19 to October 5 inclusive

- I. From September 19-21, inclusive, there shall be only personal rushing. Pins may be worn beginning September 19.
 - (a) When more than three sorority girls or three new girls are in a group it shall be considered as formal rushing.
 - (b) Personal rushing shall not include any expenditure of funds whatsover by sorority girls; that includes food, gifts, and games. Home rushing is forbidden. There shall be no enter-taining of rushees at town homes.
 - (c) Throughout all rushing there is to be no conversation about other houses or concerning personal House Affairs.
 - (d) Alumnae are put under the same rules as active sorority girls.
 - In personal rushing sorority girls may enter the Hall from 4:00-7:30 P. M. in the afternoon.
 - (f) There shall be no rushing by men or by non-sorority women. This includes mothers or sisters.

- II. House Rushing shall begin September 22nd through September 28th.
 - (a) No slumber parties shall be given.
 - (b) No personal rushing shall be done.
 - 1. This includes sending letters, gifts or visiting hall, etc.
 - (c and d) A preferential breakfast shall be given by all houses the first Sunday morning. This includes taking rushees to church.
 - List of girls desired by each house shall be handed to the Dean of Women on Friday.
 - The Dean of Women shall hold meeting with Freshmen and turn back preferences by Saturday.
 - (e) A date book shall be issued by intersorority council and dates shall be checked, and no invitations shall be issued.
 - (f) A schedule of dates shall be agreed upon.
 - (g) Sororities shall not call for rushees.
 - (h) Dinners shall last from 5:30-7:30 P. M.
 - (i) Lunches shall last from 11:45-1:30.
 - (i) Teas shall last from 4:00-5:00 P. M.
- III. The second period of informal rushing shall include September 29th-30th. This period shall be subject to same rules as first period.
- IV. Formal rush season shall be from October 1-3 inclusive.
 - (a) Formal party shall be a dinner party to be held from 5:00 to 7:30 P. M.
- (b) The succession of parties for 1929-30 shall be:

 Delta Phi......Tuesday

- Alpha Phi AlphaWednesday Beta ChiThursday
- (c) The formal rush parties shall be limited to a certain fixed sum. For the year 1929-30 it shall not exceed \$55,00.
- (d) An itemized account of party expenses is to be turned in to the Dean of Women by October 12.
- V. There shall be a system of preferential bidding for the year 1929-30.
 - (a) The new girls shall hand in their choices of sororities by 6:00 P. M., October 4th, to the Dean of Women.
 - (b) The sororities shall have their bids in at the office of the Dean of Women by 6:00 P. M., Ocotber 4th.
 - (c) The girls shall then receive their bids by 9:00 P. M. Pledge services shall be held October 5th.

VI. Sororities may pledge during the first six weeks any girl who has been on the campus a previous semester.

VII. New girls of Freshman, Sophomore, Junior, or Senior classes shall not be pledged until formal pledging of rush week.

VIII. No bids shall be promised to any girl at any time.

IX. No personal expenditure for favors.

X. Any sorority violating the above rules shall be obliged to forfeit one-half of all bids for that year.

XI. Twenty-five per cent of boarding members of the sororities may return to their respective houses by September 13th for house work only, being on their honor to refrain from any form of rushing.

XII. Silence shall last from October 1st to October 5th.

HONORARY ORGANIZATIONS

Alpha Kappa Nu

Alpha Kappa Nu, established on the Willamette campus in 1920, is a local honorary scholastic fraternity, having for its purpose the promotion of high scholarship. Its membership is limited to not more than fifteen per cent of each Senior class, and selection of members is made just preceeding Commencement each year.

Tau Kappa Alpha

Tau Kappa Alpha, national forensic fraternity, established a chapter at Willamette in 1926. The purpose of this organization is to promote interest in forensics, and in the year since its installation here it has proven to be the foundation upon which all forensic activities are based.

Pi Gamma Mu

Oregon Alpha chapter of Pi Gamma Mu was installed on the Willamette campus in 1924. This national social fraternity aims to develop in the college students an interest in the solution of human problems by scientific methods. Seniors having completed twen'y semester hours work in this field, with an average grade of at least 85 per cent therein, are eligible to membership.

Theta Alpha Phi

Since its installation on the campus in 1920, the Oregon Alpha chapter of Theta Alpha Fhi, national dramatic fraternity, has promoted interest in dramatics to a large degree. The fraternity presents from two to four plays each year, and the tryouts are open to all students, thus offering a medium for any who are interested to take part. Membership is limited to those who show real ability in the field.

Blue Key

The Blue Key Fraternity, which is a national service fraternity, established a chapter at Willamette in 1926. It is composed of upperclassmen, and each year members are elected from the Sophomore class. The fraternity endeavors to render service to the campus in every field of activity.

Delta Theta Phi

The Wolverton Senate of Delta Theta Phi, national legal fraternity, was established on the Willamette campus in 1928. It has been in existence but a short time here, but already it promises to be an organization of great strength in the Law School. The honor of having the Law School of Willamette recognized in this manner is felt to be a big step forward for the University.

PUBLICATIONS

The Willamette Collegian

The Collegian is the official college paper, and is published weekly by the student body. Staff members who have served one year faithfully, and who have done work of real merit are awarded with a gold Old English (C.).

It is customary and expected that Willamette students will patronize Collegain advertisers.

Wallulah

The Wallulah is the annual year book, published by the student body, and appearing at May Day.

Willamette Song Book

The Willamette Song Book includes all the Willamette songs up to date. Every student should own a copy.

Student Handbook

The Student Handbook is published by the A. S. W. U. Its purpose is to acquaint new students with the University and give useful information concerning student activities.

ATHLETIC ORGANIZATIONS

"W" Club

The "W" Club is composed of all students who have won their letter in varsity athletics on the campus, and encourages a spirit of good sportsmanship at all inter-collegiate contests.

Women's Athletic Association

The Women's Athletic Association is composed of women who have earned their letter in inter-class or varsity athletic contests. The organization sponsors a number of hikes during the school year, and actively promotes interest in inter-class sports.

Cubs

The Cubs are an organization of Freshmen and Sophomores, whose duty it is to usher at games, care for the interests of visiting teams, and enforce traditions. They are recognized as officials at all games.

Athletic Board

The Athletic Board, composed of members from the Board of Trustees, faculty, coaching staff, and students, acts as an advisory committee in regard to policy, finance, etc.

Awards Committee

The Awards Committee is composed of members from the faculty, coaching staff, and student body, and decides upon the distribution of awards, upon the recommendation of the coaches.

Athletic Managers

Varsity sports managers are appointed, and class managers elected, and these students arrange the various inter-class and varsity sports.

MUSICAL ORGANIZATIONS

Women's Glee Club

Tryouts for membership in the Women's Glee Club are held soon after the opening of school in the fall. The club gives a home concert, and, during spring vacation takes a trip, giving concerts in Oregon and Washington. The members are active in all musical activities on the campus.

Men's Glee Club

Membership in the Men's Glee Club is determined by tryouts, and the organization makes an extended tour between semesters. The Varsity Quartette takes a prominent part in the festivities of Junior Week End.

Beethoven Society

The Beethoven Society is an organization of talented musicians, which has for its purpose the development of interest in music and furtherance of its appreciation on the campus. The members of the society, besides presenting a monthly chapel program, sponsor and participate in many musical programs in Salem.

University Band

The Willamette University Band was organized last year for the prime purpose of creating pep and spirit at athletic contests.

University Orchestra

The Orchestra was organized last year in order to bring out and develop the musical talent of the University.

Freshman Glee

Freshman Glee is held early in March each year, and is the occasion of great interclass rivalry. Each class presents an original song, and the winning class is awarded the coveted Freshman Glee Panner. Through this contest, Willamette has come into possession of many beautiful songs, and has become noted for its music.

FORENSICS

Forensic Council

The Forensic Council is composed of three members of the debate squad who have won the Bar "W." It has charge of all forensic activities, and promotes interest in public speaking on the campus.

Debate

Willamette now holds an outstanding position in the Pacific Coast Forensic League, due to her excellent work in debate. The men's teams traveled to Moscow to the League Conference last year and have upheld Willamette's reputation by winning a majority of their contests. The women's debate squad has just completed a very successful year, also, having won practically all of their debates.

Interclass debating is encouraged, and forms an interesting part of the inter-class rivalry activities.

Oratory

Willamette was prominent in the field of oratory last year, her representative having placed first in the State Old Line Oratorical Contest. This contest, together with the State Peace Oratorical Contest and the Pacific Coast Extemporaneous Contest, provides adequate opportunity for achievement for the student interested in oratory.

CLUBS AND SOCIETIES

Daleth Teth Gimel

Daleth Teth Gimel is a chapter of the national organization of Daleth Teth Gimel, and was organized on the campus in the fall of 1928. Both sorority and non-sorority girls are members. The purpose of the society is to provide an opportunity for every girl to develop personality fully through social activities, and to promote a spirit of democracy among the girls on the campus.

Willamette Wesleyans

The national organization of which the Willamette Wesleyans is a part has for its purpose the promotion of interest in missionary work, and is composed of students who plan to give full time Christian service in the home or foreign field. The Willamette group holds weekly meetings, at which time lectures and discussions of interest are enjoyed.

Ball and Chain

'The Ball and Chain society is composed of men of the Sophomore, Junior and Senior classes, and is an outgrowth of the Men's Literary Societies. The nature of the organization is purely social.

Science Club

Students who are interested in study and research in the field of the natural sciences compose the Science Club. Interesting and unique experiments are conducted, and the group entertains at student chapel once or twice during the year.

Classical Club

Students taking the classics are eligible to membership in the Classical Club, whose purpose is to further interest in and appreciation of the Greeks and Romans and their languages.

PRIZES

At Commencement time of each year a number of prizes are awarded to those students in the University who have shown ability in certain fields of endeavor.

Albert Prize

Mr. Jos. H. Albert, of Salem, awards \$25 to the student having a record for faithful study and scholarship not below the average, who, during the school year, opportunities considered, has made the greatest progress toward the ideal in character, service, and wholesome influence.

The Colonel Willis Prize

Col. Percy Willis, '95. of Portland, offers a prize of \$25 "to the student who throughout the school year has done the most real good to fellow students and the University by deeds of kindness and genuine helpfulness, coupled with steadfast devotion to high ideals and upright character."

Burghardt Prize

Mr. William Burghardt, Jr., of Salem, offers \$25 to the student in the first course in calculus who earns the highest grade throughout the year.

Steeves Prize

A prize of \$10 is offered by Dr. B. L. Steeves, '91, for the student who does the best work in Latin.

Keyes Prize

Hon. Walter E. Keyes, of Salem, offers two prizes of \$15 and \$10 to those who win first and second honors in oratory.

University Prizes

The University offers the following prizes to winners in any University contest in Public Speaking, to be applied on tuition in the College of Liberal Arts, except in the case of Seniors in their last semester, who will be paid in cash:

Oratory:

- 1. \$5 to the winner in a tryout.
- \$10 to the winner in an intercollegiate contest.
- 3. \$15 to the winner in an interstate contest.

Debate:

\$10 to the winner in an inter-collegiate contest. A winning team will divide the University prize.

No person may receive more than one prize in any college year.

Senior Scholars

Senior scholars are chosen from the various departments each year to serve as readers and student assistants in the respective departments. Besides the honor attached to the choice there is also credit given in college hours.



COACH KEENE

FOOTBALL SCHEDULE

Sept. 21-Oregon State College at Corvallis.

Sept. 28-Open.

Oct. 5-Linfield at Salem (tentative).

Oct. 12-University of Oregon at Eugene.

Oct. 18-Albany College at Albany. Oct. 26-College of Idaho at Salem.

Nov. 2-Pacific University at Salem. Home-coming.

Nov. 11-Open.

Nov. 17-Open.

Nov. 28-Whitman College at Walla Walla.

ATHLETICS

Intercollegiate Athletics are maintained under the personal supervision of the Director of Athletics and under the jurisdiction of the Athletic Council.

Willamette belongs to the Northwest Conference, composed of the following schools: Whitman College, College of Idaho, College of Puget Sound. Pacific University, and Linfield College. It is the purpose of this conference, as far as possible, to foster participation by all members of the Conference in contests of football, basketball, baseball, tennis, and track.

Intramural Activities

Intramural Activities are maintained under the personal supervision of the Director of Physical Education and the Chairman of the Interclass Rivalry Committee.

The program extends over the entire school year, and is composed of the following activities: cross country, scrimmage ball, basketball, wrestling, boxing, physical ability tests, track, baseball, and tennis.

Students taking Physical Education for credit must pass the Physical Ability Tests before they are permitted to substitute an intramural activity for the regular class

work.

Gymnasium Requirements

Physical Education is required of all students throughout the Freshman and Sophomore years.

The regulation uniform for the Physical Education classes consists of rubber-soled shoes, supporter, sleeveless jersey, pants, and a heavy sweater or sweatshirt.

Locker should be locked at all times. Equipment that is left out will be picked up.



DONNELL SANDERS

YELLS

Spell Bearcats

B-E-A-R-C-A-T-S
Rah!
B-E-A-R-C-A-T-S
Rah!
BEARCATS
(Spelled)

RAH RAH RAH—BEARCATS
(Yelled)

Y-E-A-W. U.

Y-e-a—W. U. Y-e-a—W. U. Y-e-a—W. U.

Fight 'em, Fight 'em, Fight 'em Willamette

Skyrocket

S-g-s-s-s-s-s (rise on whistle) s-s-BOOM! A-a-a-a-ah WILLAMETTE!!!!!!

Bearcats

Hip Hooray! Hip Hooray! Hip Hooray! WOWIE Rah, Rah, Rah, Bearcats!

Team Yell

T-E-A-M-TEAM! Fight-Fight . . . TEAM!

Locomotive

Rah, Rah, Rah, Rah, W. U., W. U. Rah, Rah, Rah, Rah, W. U., W. U. Rah, Rah, Rah, Rah, W. U., W. U. Rah, Rah, Rah, Rah, WILLAMETTE

Keene

He's keen! Who's Keen? SPEC'S KEEN!

Go Get 'Em Yell

Go get 'em, Bearcats, Go get 'em (slowly, softly)

Go Get 'Em, Bearcats, Go Get 'Em (faster, louder)

GO GET 'EM-PEARCATS, GO GET 'EM (FAST AND LOUD)



MARY ALLEN Song Queen

OLD HISTORIC TEMPLE

There's an old Historic temple Rising grandly through the years, Where the oaken-hearted fathers Drew their strength for strong careers. Down the years its portals open, Gathers wise ones to its fold; Breathes the spirit of the Westland. Card'nal emblem 'bossed with gold.

Spirit of the Golden Westland. Breathing through our fathers' tears; Tells the story of the Temple. Bids us hope adown the years. Sing, oh sing, of old Willamette, Sing while hearts are young and true; Sea to sea the chorus swelling, Dear old school, our W. U.

I LOVE WILLAMETTE U

I love Willamette U.

I love her campus too;

I love her Profs so good and true,

I love her spirit real true blue.

I love the old mill stream.

I love to sit and dream;

I see it all in shadows cool, I love our dear old school.

QUEEN OF THE WEST

The East may love old Harvard,

The North love old Cornell:

But the school of fame, whose noble name,

Forever shall excel

Stands proudly in the Westland Where friends are staunch and true;

We love our deal old college,

So here's to W. U!

Chorus-

Willamette, to thee we will be true, Willamette, we'll ever fight for you,

We pledge our loyalty.

Our homage pay to thee, Pride of all the West, you are the best, Willamette, our hearts we pledge anew,

Willamette, our hearts we pled Willamette, our fealty to you,

Faithful we will be With staunch fidelity,

With staunch fidelity, Willamette, queen of all!

Fling high our glorious colors The Cardinal and the Gold,

Exalt the dream which stands supreme
Wrought by the men of old.

With eager hearts and voices

And veneration true; Sing forth our acclamations

Bold sons of W. U.

LET'S GO WILLAMETTE

Let's go! Willamette U.
Onward to win the score
Show our spirit true
Fighting for evermore
And may the victory bell
Our praises tell

And ring them out tonight Rah for the fame of Willamette's name Show 'em the Bearcat Fight.

WILLAMETTE

There's a school we call Willamette
That will ever prompt our praise,
For 'tis there we win our victories
And there our standards raise.
It's a school that makes true sportsmen
And will lasting service give
To those who dare to do their share
And fight that she might live.

Chorus-

Willamette, Willamette, we're with you to
the end!
Willamette, Willamette, our voices gladly
blend
To cheer you, revere you. and your undaunted fame,
Oh, Willamette U,
We will see you through,
And guard your glorious name!

So we'll fight for old Willamette
And with courage ever bold
We will cheer our mighty Bearcats,
Cheer the Cardinal and the Gold;
And our team still striving onward,
With a victory in view,
Brings cheer for old Willamette,
Brings cheer for W. U.

OUR PLEDGE

Oh, Willamette fairest name,
School we love forever more,
We shall strive to keep thy fame,
Though we win or lose the score.
Singing ever through the fight,
"I love Willamette U,"
Aiming, striving with our might.
T'ward a worthy purpose true.

Chorus-

Oh dear Willamette U.,
The school we love so well,
We pledge our love to you
And e'er your praises tell.
Oh may we always be
Most worthy sons of thine,
We pledge our loyalty
Willamette, school of mine.

College friends will go their way
And our world will hurry on
Our strife lost but a day
And our cause be lost or won
But through all our lives we'll sing
"I love Willamette U."
And to the end we'll bring
Our trust kept faithful true.

TRUE TO YOUR SPIRIT

True to your spirit!
On brave warroirs to the end
Fight till the foe shall fear us
Till the enemy's haughty head shall bend,
On for Willamette,
Fight the battle as of old,
Victory the prize shall be
Of the cardinal embossed with gold.

WILLAMETTE SPRING SONG

Oh, springtime at Willamette,
There's naught could sweeter be!
Like mists by sunlight melted,
The clouds of trouble flee.
And all of life seems gladness
At just a sparrow's trill,
Or glimpse of maple blossoms,
Our hearts with rapture thrill.

Oh, sweet is day's stern labor,
We conquer without fear;
And sweet the hours of evening
When college friends are near.
So gathered here at twilight
Amid the shadows long,
Soft notes of youth and springtime
Are mingled in our song.

ON WILLAMTTTE

On Willamette. ever onward,
To the highest goal in view,
From the bell tower rings the story
Of thy conquests, W. U.
In our mighty Alma Mater
Let our faith be ever bold,
That victory may be the prize,
Of the Cardinal and the Gold.

MAGIC SPIRIT

Then we'll strive, we'll stand, we'll stay by

With her legends and traditions old and

Something seems to draw us onward ever to the victor's goal;

'Tis the magic of thy spirit, W. U.

CHALLENGE TO LOYALTY

There's a cardinal bar from a western sky, And a golden beam from the sun, The cardinal for the men of old Whose valiant courage won, To these memories we are loyal, They were wrought with a purpose true, On these we build our standards And our faith in Willamette U!

There's a challenge flung from this western sky, And this golden beam of light,

There's a flaming hope of victory
That will guide us ever right,
And from these colors blended,
The cardinal and golden hue,
We gain the strength of our loyalty,
And our love for Willamette U!

BEND THE KNEE

Bend the knee, yes, bend the knee
To the Cardinal and the Gold;
Before the Bearcats' fighting power
Mars himself must even cower.
Rise, ye sons of Jason Lee,
We will win the victory.
So bend bend the knee to Willamette
Varsity.

Victory; yes, victory to the Cardinal and the Gold;
Then fearful foes will bite the dust,
For win we will, for win we must.
Onward, then to mastery,
This our conquering song shall be;
So bend bend the knee to Willamette
Varsity.

DREAM ON

The stars are softly gleaming, In the shadows of the night, The moon like glowing silver Covers all with mellow light. The world is resting peaceful From the hurry of the day, So now beneath your window Do I sing to you and say—

Chorus-(Boys sing)

Dream on gently, pretty maiden, Till the golden heart of you Thrills with night-time's beauty, And your fairest dream come true.

(Girls sing)

Dream on, lad of old Willamette, Till the youthful heart of you Thrills with life and love and glory, And your fairest dreams come true.

The mill stream ripples onward
Through the mottled shade of trees,
The moon is wafted gently
By the golden evening breeze.
And making light the shadows
Dance the moonlight fairy beams
And they mingle with our music
And they harmonize your dreams.

FIGHT 'EM BEARCATS

Fight 'em, Bearcats, fight forever, Guard Willamette through the years; Fight with mighty strong endeavor, Shield the spirit of our seers. Fight 'em Bearcats, sturdy warriors, Fight with matchless courage bold, For the glory of our Cardinal, Cardinal and undaunted Gold.

JUNIOR SONG '28

When all the campus is sleeping,
Bathed in a silv'ry glow,
Lulled to rest by the mill stream,
Murmuring soft and low,
Our voices will lift 'neath your window,
Soft as the palest moonlight
Not to disturb your fair slumbers;
But wish as we bid you good night.

Chorus-

While you are sleeping, sleeping, Under the milky way, Wrapt in the shadow of night-time. Far from the cares of the day; May you be dreaming, dreaming, Dreams of a love ever true Love that a lad of Willamette Holds in his heart for you.

Hark! as the voices of nature
Break thru the quiet night,
The singing sigh of the tree tops
Whispering low and light,
The distant chirp of the cricket,
Night breezes age-old song
Oh, may you hear in your dreamland
The wish of this choral throng.

GO, WILLAMETTE

Fight the fight that knows no fear,
Oh, Willamette, heart of cheer.
Then we'll shout the name we love,
To the bending skies above.
Go Willamette, go Willamette, go W. U.
Go win the victory
Show them all both great and small,
What Willamette fight can do.

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE ASSOCIATED STUDENTS OF WILLAMETTE UNIVERSITY

PREAMBLE

We, the students of Willamette University, in order to provide an organization for the control of all matters of general student concern, do hereby ordain and establish the following constitution and by-laws:

CONSTITUTION

Aricle I-Organization

Sec. 1. Name. The name of this organization shall be the Associated Students of Willamette University.

Sec. 2. Membership. All registered students in the department of Willamette University shall be active members of the Associated Students of Willamette University upon payment of the student body fee, as provided in Article VIII of this Constitution.

Article II-Meetings

Sec. 1. Regular. The regular meetings of the Associated Students of Willamette University shall be held on the third Friday of each month during the school year.

Sec. 2. Special. Special meetings shall be held upon the call of the president on his own initiative, upon the request of three members of the executive committee, or upon a petition of fifty members; provided that twenty-four hours' notice shall have been given in all departments before such meetings.

Sec. 3. Quorum. Fifty per cent of the members shall constitute a quorum.

Article III-Officers

Sec. 1. General Officers. The officers of this organization shall be a president, first vice president, second vice president and secretary, all of whom shall be chosen from the two upper classes of the following vear.

Sec. 2. Duties of President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the association; shall be ex-officio chairman of the executive committee; shall appoint such committees as are hereinafter specified; shall approve all bills and sign all warrants for disbursements of funds except as otherwise provided; and shall per-form the usual duties pertaining to this office.

Sec. 3. Duties of First Vice President. The first vice president shall assume the duties of president in the absence of that

officer.

Sec. 4. Duties of Second Vice President. The second vice president shall order and issue student body tickets at the time of registration; shall provide official poll-books for all A. S. W. U. elections by list-ing the name of all students who have paid their dues one week before the time of elections; and shall act as manager for all student body funds not otherwise pro-vided for. He shall issue requisitions to the A. S. W. U. treasurer for all expenditures from student body funds.

Sec. 5. Duties of Secretary The secretary shall keep records of all proceedings of this association and at the close of the college year shall place these records in the care of the registrar of the

University.

Article IV-Elections

Sec. 1. Officers Elected at Regular Elections. The president, first vice president, second vice president, secretary, the editor of the Collegian and editor of the Wallulah, shall be elected at the regular election to be held on the fourth Friday in

April.

2. Nomination. Nomination for Sec. the officers named in Section 1 shall be made by petition, signed by twenty-five members of the student body. Said petition shall be filed with the executive committee before the Saturday preceding election, and must be sanctioned in writing by the nominee. Said petition shall be posted on the A. S. W. U. bulletin boards by the executive committee by the Saturday preceding election, and the names of the candidates shall be published in the Willamette Collegian previous to the election. The privilege to write in the names of candidate on the ballots shall not be abridged by this provision.

Sec. 3. Rules for Election. The provisions of this section shall be effective in the election of officers listed in Section 1.

Clause 1. The Australian system. The

Australian ballot system shall be used.

Clause 2. The polls shall be open from 10 a. m. to 4 p. m. and for the law department at such times and such places as shall be deemed expedient by the executive committee, providing that public notice of such times and places be given one week previous to the balloting.

Clause 3. Election officers. There shall be at the polls at all times an inspector.

one ballot distributor, and one clerk.

Clause 4. Ballots. The ballot distribu-tor shall give out one ballot to each voter, and ballots shall not be received from any other source.

Clause 5. Eligibility to vote. The clerk shall keep an official poll-book compiled by the second vice president as provided in Article III, Section 4, of this Constitution. and no one shall be permitted to vote whose name is not in this book.

Clause 6. Counting ballots. The ballots shall be counted by the executive committee or a special committee provided by the executive committee, immediately after the closing of the polls. and the results of the election shall be posted upon the various department bulletin boards.

Clause 7. Electioneering. No electioneering or soliciting of votes shall be permitted within the limits established around the

polls by the inspector.

Clause 8. Majority. A majority vote shall be required to elect, and in case no candidate receives a majority, the executive committee shall call a new election within one week; at this election only the names of the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall appear on the ballot.

Section 4. Term of Office. The officers listed in Section 1 shall assume the duties of their respective offices at the beginning of the college year following their election, and shall hold office one year or until their successors shall be regularly elected and qualified.

Sec. 5. Installation. Formal installation of these officers shall be held at the last regular meeting of each college year.

Sec. 6. Special Elections. Special elections shall be held as follows:

Olause 1. At the first regular meeting of the association each year the following officers shall be chosen by ballot:

(a) The four members at large of the executive committee, one from each of the

four classes.

(b) The faculty member of the executive committee.

(c) An inter-class rivalry chairman,

It shall require a majority to elect.

Clause 2. At the regular meeting of the association in March nominations for May Queen shall be made from among the girls of the senior class by popular ballot of the A. S. W. U. The three girls receiving the highest number of votes shall become candidates for this office. Election be held one week after nomination and a plurality shall elect.

Clause 3. Nominations for the forensic council shall be made at the regular May meeting of the association. The election shall be held the following Wednesday.

Clause 4. At any regular or special meeting of the association a special election may be called to fill any vacancy that

may occur in any elective office.

Sec. 7. Recall. A special election for the recall of any officer or officers of the association shall be called by the president of the A. S. W. U. at the petition of twentyfive per cent of the members. It shall require a two-thirds vote to effect the recall.

Article V-Vacancies

All vacancies which may occur in elective offices of the A. S. W. U. shall be filled by the regular popular ballot at the special election.

Article VI-Executive Committee

Sec. 1. Membership. The executive committee shall consist of:

(a) The president of the A. S. W. U., who shall be the presiding officer without

vote except in a case of a tie.

(b) The first vice president of the A. S. W. U.

(c) The second vice president of the A. S. W. U.

(d) The secretary of the A. S. W. U., who shall keep a record of the proceedings of the committee.

- (e) A member of the faculty of the College of Liberal Arts.
 - The editor of the Collegian.

(g) Four members at large from the A. S. W. U.

Sec. 2. Meetings.

Clause 1. Regular. Regular meetings of the executive committee shall be held once in each fortnight during the college vear.

Clause 2. Special. Special meetings of the committee shall be held upon the call of the president or upon the request of three members of the committee.

Clause 3. Quorum. Five members besides the presiding officer shall constitute a quorum.

Sec. 3. Duties.

Clause 1. Make the following appointments:

(a) A Collegian manager for the following year before May 15.

(b) A May Day manager before March 1. (c) A Yell King, a Crown Prince, and a Song Queen before May 15.

(d) Elect an A. S. W. U. Treasurer before June 1.

(e) Elect a Wallulah advisory committee and a Wallulah manager as provided in

Article XVI of this Constitution.

Clause 2. Enforce the Constitution. The executive committee shall require all officers to comply with the provisions of the Constitution and shall have full control over all student activities.

Clause 3. Prepare budget and require honds. The executive committee shall prepare a general budget for the A. S. W. U. finances and shall require bonds of whatever denominations it may deem appropriate from the treasurer.

Clause 4. Uniform system of bookkeeping. The executive committee shall establish a uniform system of bookkeeping throughout the departments of the association, audit all accounts and file the same as permanent records.

Clause 5. Awards. The executive committee shall procure awards as ordered by the awards committee.

Clause 6. Elections. The executive committee shall arrange all elections as provided in Article IV of this Constitution.

Clause 7. Athletic fund. The executive committee shall hold through the student body treasurer a permanent athletic fund to be composed of thirty per cent of the annual student body funds as provided in Article VII of this Constitution, and all money accruing from athletic contracts, contests, or from any other source.

Clause 8. Athletic policy. The executive committee shall determine the general athletic policy of the school, appoint athletic managers, approve all schedules of games, choose and instruct the representatives to the Northwest Intercollegiate Conference, and recommend to the president of the University each year. before January 15, an athletic director.

Clause 9. Athletic director. The athletic director shall be the administrative head of athletics and as such shall schedule games, arrange contracts, select equipment, arrange for officials for all games and contests and supervise the work of the athletic managers in accordance with the policy determined by the executive committee.

Clause 10. Division 1. Athletic managers. The executive committee shall ap-

point the following:

(a) A football manager, by May 15.

(b) A basketball manager, by November 1.

(c) A spring sports manager, by February 15, and shall prescribe their respective duties.

Division 2. Duties of managers.

(a) To collect all athletic funds, turn over the same to the treasurer of the student body, and to keep a complete record

of all receipts.

(b) To issue requisitions for the purchase of equipment necessary for the conduct of their respective sports, to approve all bills incurred, and to pay the same with checks from the student body treasury, to keep a complete record of all expenditures.

(c) To make complete reports to the executive committee at the ends of their respective sports seasons covering all moneys handled by their departments during

their term of office.

(d) To assist the coach as he may direct them.

Article VII-Dues

Sec. 1. A. S. W. U. Dues.

Sec. 1. A. S. W. U. Dues.
Clause 1. The dues for membership in this association shall be ten dollars (\$10.00) each semester, payable at the time of registration. A signed note will be considered as payment. Such payment shall entitle the members to student body tickets admitting them to all University games or contests held on the campus, and shall include them on the subscription list of the Willamette Collegian. Payment of student body dues for the first semester shall entitle members to have their photographs in the annual Wallulah. Payment of dues for the second semester shall entitle members to a copy of the Wallulah.

Clause 2. Failure to pay dues. Failure or refusal to pay dues shall render students ineligible to hold office in the association, to vote at its elections, or to represent it in any manner whatsoever.

Clause 3. Funds. Student body dues together with all other moneys accrued by the association shall go into a general fund.

Clause 4. Expenditure of funds.

Division 1. Five per cent of the annual A. S. W. U. dues shall go to the manager of the Willamette Collegian for the support of that paper.

Division 2. Thirty per cent of the annual A. S. W. U. dues shall go to the athletic fund.

Division 3. Thirty-three per cent of the annual student body dues shall go to the manager of the Wallulah for the support of that book.

Division 4. Fifteen per cent of the annual student body dues shall go to the four class treasurers, of the Liberal Arts School and the three class treasurers of the Law School, through the A. S. W. U. treasurer, in proportion to the number in each class paying student body dues, which shall be determined by the A. S. W. U. treasurer, save and except that any member of any class of the Law School shall reserve the right to have his class dues paid to the corresponding class of Liberal Arts upon his designation. The collection and disbursement of this portion of the A. S. W. U. dues shall not abridge the right of any class to levy additional taxes.

Division 5. All other expenditures shall be made only by the treasurer of the A. S. W. U. upon official warrant.

Article VIII-Treasurer

Sec. 1. Qualifications. The treasurer may be any person not an undergraduate. He shall be appointed by the executive committee, and his appointment approved by the president of the University.

Sec. 2. Duties. The duties of the treas-

urer shall be as follows:

(a) Receipts. He shall receive all student body fees from the University office, and shall receive all funds collected from any source from the managers of all student activities.

(b) Disbursements. He shall pay by check through the managers of activities

all properly approved bills.

(c) Records. He shall keep an accurate account of all transactions and be ready upon five days' notice to render a full account to the executive committee of the A. S. W. U. He shall make a complete report at the close of his term of office.

(d) Class taxes. He shall collect and disburse the class taxes as provided in

Article VII of this Constitution.

(e) Salary. The treasurer's salary and all expenses pertaining to the office shall be apportioned per rata among the funds handled, as shall be determined by the executive committee.

Article IX-Willamette Collegian

Sec. 1. Name. The paper shall be known

as the Willamette Collegian.

Sec. 2. Policy. The active policy of the paper shall be determined by the editor and manager, each of whom shall organize his staff.

Sec. 3. Contract. The president of the A. S. W. U. shall appoint a committee of three to draw up a contract for the student body, party of the first part, the business

manager and editor of the Collegian, party of the second part, said contract to contain specifications for a minimum number of thirty issues per year, on a weekly basis, and any other points required by the executive committee. This contract shall be signed before the publication of the first issue.

Sec. 4. Financial Report. The manager shall render to the executive committee a monthly report of the financial status of the paper.

Sec. 5. Profits. At the end of the college year all profits shall be divided as

follows:

(a) An amount equal to ten per cent of the funds received from the A. S. W. U. shall be placed in a permanent Collegian fund.

- (b) Further profits to the amount of two hundred dollars shall be divided equally between the editor and the manager.
- (c) Of all further profits twenty-five per cent shall be paid to the manager, and, of the remainder, sufficient money to bring the permanent Collegian fund up to three hundred dollars shall be placed in that fund. All further profits shall be placed in the regular student body funds.
- (d) No further compensation for members of either the editorial or managerial staff shall be taken from regular Collegion funds unless such expenditures are first authorized by the executive committee.
- Sec. 6. The permanent Collegian fund which shall be administered by the executive committee, may be appropriated only to cover deficits in current expenses of the Collegian and to pay for permanent improvements deemed advisable by the executive committee.

Article X—Student Book Store (Not in effect)

Article XI-Forensic Council

Sec. 1. The Forensic Council shall consist of:

(a) Three Bar "W" members of the A. S. W. U., one of whom shall be a man and one of whom shall be a woman.

(b) Coaches of debate.

Sec. 2. Election for the Forensic Council shall be held on the Wednesday following the regular May meeting of the A. S. W. U.

Sec. 3. The president of the A. S. W. U. shall call a meeting of the council within ten days following its election. The council shall, at this meeting, choose a chairman from its members.

Sec. 4. The chairman of the council shall have direct charge of all debate and oratorical activities and be responsible for all moneys within the forensic department, but shall be accountable by the council in the fulfilment of his duties.

Sec. 5. The chairman shall nominate to the council as he shall see fit any other persons to be officially connected with these

activities.

Article XII-Yell King and Song Queen

Sec. 1. Officers. The officers of this department shall be a Yell King, a Crown

Prince, and a Song Queen.

Sec. 2. They shall be elected by a vote of the student body after a tryout before the students. This tryout shall be announced ten days before the election and three days before the tryout.

Sec. 3. Term of Office. The term of office of these officers shall be the same as that of the other A. S. W. U. officers.

Sec. 4. Duties.

Clause 1. Yell King It shall be the duty of the Yell King to endeavor at all

times to promote loyalty to Willamette University and enthusiasm over its student activities. For this end he shall, during his term of office—

(a) Provide for and conduct at least two rallies of an athletic nature and one

of a forensic nature;

(b) Personally conduct the rooting at two-thirds of the inter-collegiate contests held at home and provide for the other one-third.

(c) Provide decorations for the grandstand at all field contests and provide a

band wherever possible;

(d) Have charge of all excursions ac-

companying teams to other colleges.

Clause 2. Crown Prince. It shall be the duty of the Crown Prince to assist in the leading of yells at rallies and contests, and in otherwise promoting interest and enthusiasm in student activities.

Clause 3. Song Queen. It shall be the duty of the Song Queen to lead in the

singing of all rallies and contests.

Article XIII—May Day

Sec. 1. The A. S. W. U. shall hold an annual May Day festival on the first Friday

of May.

Sec. 2. The festival shall be conducted by a committee of four composed of a manager appointed by the executive committee, who shall be chairman, and three assistants appointed by the president of the A. S. W. U.

Sec. 3. There shall be a Queen of May elected according to Article IV of this Con-

stitution.

Article XIV—Clubs (Not in effect)

Article XV-Special Committees

Sec. 1. Auditing Committee. There shall be an auditing committee composed of the first vice president of the A. S.

W. U. and two others appointed by the president of the A. S. W. U. which shall audit the books of the treasurer of the A. S. W. U.

Sec. 2. Freshman Glee Committee. There shall be a Freshman Glee committee of four as provided in Article III of the by-

laws.

Sec. 3. May Day Committee. There shall be a May Day committee of four as provided in Article XIII of this Constitution.

Sec. 4. Inter-class Rivalry Committee. There shall be an Inter-class Rivalry committee as provided in Article IV of the by-

laws.

Sec. 5. Honor Code Committee. There shall be an Honor Code committee of seven appointed by the executive committee of the A. S. W. U. as provided in Article V of the by-laws.

Sec. 6. Awards Committee. There shall be an Awards committee as provided in

Article II of the by-laws.

Sec. 7. Wallulah Advisory Committee. There shall be a Wallulah advisory committee as provided in Article XVI of this Constitution.

Article XVI-Wallulah

Sec. 1. Name. The college annual shall be known as the Wallulah. Each edition of the Wallulah shall be known by the year in which it is published beginning in 1927. I. E.—''The 1927 Wallulah.'' The Wallulah to be published in 1926 shall be given a special name to be chosen by the editor.

Sec. 2. Division 1. Policy. The active policy of the annual shall be determined by

the Wallulah advisory committee.

Division 2. Wallulah advisory committee. This committee shall be composed of: (a) Three juniors chosen within 10 days after the annual student body election by the executive committee, from the Wallulah staff of the preceding administration. They shall serve during the ensuing year.

(b) The editor of the Wallulah.

(c) The manager as soon as he is elected

by the executive committee.

Sec. 3. Division 1. Editor. The editor of the Wallulah shall be chosen from the members of the sophomore class at the

annual student body election.

Division 2. Manager. Immediately following its organization the Wallulah advisory committee shall recommend to the executive committee two or more members of the sophomore class as candidates, for manager of the Wallulah. Further nominations may be made by the executive committee. The executive committee shall then, before May 15, elect the manager of the Wallulah for the following year.

Division 3. The editor and manager of the Wallulah shall each organize his own staff. Department heads shall be chosen as nearly as possible from the junior class, while other members of the staff shall be selected from any of the three other classes. Division 4. At the end of each year's ad-

ministration all profits shall be divided as follows:

(a) Profits to the amount of two hundred dollars shall be divided equally between

the editor and manager.

(b) Provided there is sufficient profit remaining the manager shall receive a further compensation equal to twenty per cent of all money collected from advertising over the amount of one thousand dollars (\$1000.00).

(c) All further profits shall go into a permanent Wallulah fund. This fund shall

be administered by the executive committee, and may be appropriated only to cover deficits in current expenses of the Wallulah or to pay for permanent improvements deemed advisable by the executive committee.

Article XVII—Repeal or Amendment of Legislation

Any act of any officer, committee, or organization existing under this Constitution may be repealed or amended by a two-thirds vote of this association at any regular or special meeting.

Article XVIII—Amendment to Constitution of A. S. W. U.

Amendment to this constitution may be proposed in writing at any meeting of this association. They shall then be posted for at least ten days and must appear in the Willamette Collegian. At any subsequent meeting they may be passed by a two-thirds' vote of the student body.

BY-LAWS

Article 1-Order of Business

Sec. 1. The order of business shall be: Reading of minutes. Report of committees. Unfinished business

New business. Adjournment.

Sec. 2. Rules of Order. Roberts' Rules of Order shall be the standard of parliamentary procedure.

Article II-Awards

Sec. 1. Awards Committee.

Clause 1. The awards committee shall consist of the president of the A. S. W. U., who shall be chairman; the sceretary of the A. S. W. U., who shall keep a record of

all proceedings; the faculty member of the executive committee, and-

For athletic awards, the coach and man-

ager, of the activity involved;

For forensic awards, the coach of the activity and the chairman of the Forensic Council:

For Collegian awards, the editor and

asistant editors:

For the band, the Yell King and the

Clause 2. Four members shall constitute a quorum.

Sec. 2. Athletics. Clause 1. The official award for men participating in football, basketball, track, and tennis shall be a cardinal coat sweater bearing on the left hand side an old gold full block "W" 5 inches by 3% by 1 inch.

Clause 2. The official award for women in tennis shall be a white coat sweater bearing on the chest a cardinal Old English "W" 5 inches by 4 by % inches.

Clause 3. Awards shall be given as

follows:

Division 1. Football-to men playing five complete quarters of conference football, or with schools of conference standing.

Division 2. Basketball-to men playing five conference games or the equivalent

playing time.

Division 3. Baseball-to men playing two-third of the total innings, except pitchers, who shall play one-fourth of the total innings.

Division 4. Track.

(a) To men making three points in a meet with a conference team in which

freshmen are not eligible.

(b) To men making six points in a meet with a conference team in which freshmen are eligible.

(c) To men placing in the Northwest Conference meet.

(d) To men earning the total of twenty

points in all meets of the season.

(e) Each member of a relay team which wins first place shall receive two points.

Division 5. Tennis.

(a) To men winning a match with a team of conference standing or playing in at least three conference meets.

(b) To women winning a match with a team of conference standing or playing in

at least three conference meets.

Division 6. Exceptions to general rules for awarding letters—To seniors, who are not qualified under the regular rules because of physical injury, or who have been faithful for at least three years, or who have performed exceptionally meritorious work, the official "W" award may be given upon the recommendation of the director of athletics, the coach, the team captain, and with the unanimous vote of the executive committee.

Division 7. No official award shall be given to anyone who has not received the recommendation of the coach and the unanimous vote of the awards committee.

Clause 3. Four-year awards. Any member of a varsity athletic team who has earned the official award for three years and turned out for four years in either football, basketball, baseball, track or tennis shall be entitled to the official cardinal Indian blanket, which shall be 56 inches by 80 inches in dimensions with an old gold block "W" 2 by 12 by 14 inches, sewed in the center. The blanket shall weigh at least three pounds. Five pointed stars, the points resting on a circle three inches in diameter, shall be used to designate in what sport awards have been earned. Each star shall represent a season's

service. The stars shall be arranged as follows: For football and basketball the stars shall be placed in parallel lines above the letter, the first line being three inches from the letter tips, the second two inches above the first. The stars in line shall be three inches apart. Stars arranged as above noted shall be placed below the letter for baseball and track. For football the stars shall be gold: for basketball, black: for baseball, green; for track, blue; for tennis, silver: For each season's captaincy a ring three and one-half inches in diameter shall surround the star; and it shall be the same color as the star. An individual shall be entitled to only one official blanket.

Clause 4. Each of the three athletic managers shall receive a cardinal sweater with two sidepockets and a block of old gold "W" four inches by three inches on the

left pocket.

Clause 5. No official award to anyone below sophomore standing in the University shall include a sweater or letter, but freshmen shall receive the official certificate on the first award day after earning the same and such individuals shall receive the sweater and letter on the first award day following their registration after receiving sophomore rating.

Sec. 3. Forensics.

Clause 1. Official award for participation in forensics shall be a solid gold block "W" 3% of an inch wide, mounted on a gold bar 5% of an inch long.

Clause 2. Awards shall be given as

follows:

Division 1. Debate—winning of one or participation in two intercollegiate debates.

Division 2. Oratory—participation in an intercollegiate contest in which at least five colleges participate.

Division 3. Exception. If, through no

fault of the participant the number of contestants in a regular inter-collegiate oratorical contest is less than five, the awards committee may, at its discretion, approve the granting of the Bar-W to the

participant.

Division 4. Any student who has earned official award for three years, and turned out the fourth year in either debate, oratory, or extemporaneous speaking, shall receive an official four-year award, which shall consist of a silver lovingcup 8 inches high, mounted on an ebony base 6 inches in diameter by 4 inches The cup shall be embossed with an official W. U. seal, and engraved with the name of the recipient, the activity in which it was earned, and the date of the award.

Sec. 4. Band.

Clause 1. Official award for participation in the band shall be a solid gold lyre designed as a "W" which shall be % of an

inch high and % of an inch wide.

Clause 2. An award shall be given tostudents for complete participation in threefourths of the local appearances; provided that the band shall appear at all local football and baseball games, and provided that the band at such appearances shall have all the pieces of a ten-piece regulationhand

Clause 3. The earning of four awards shall entitle the member to a cardinal felt pillow top bearing an old gold "W" of the

design of the pin award.

Sec. 5. Clause 1. Yell King. The award of the Yell King shall be the official sweater with a round old gold "WU" which

shall be on the left of the chest.

Clause 2. Song Queen. The award of the Song Queen shall be the official woman's sweater with a round old gold "WU" which shall be on the left side of the chest. Clause 3. Exception. The award of the Yell King and the Song Queen shall be given only on the approval of the head coach and the executive committee.

Sec. 6. Collegian.

Clause 1. Collegian award shall be a

solid gold Old English "C."

Clause 2. Faithful and punctual service of high quality shall entitle a member of the Collegian staff to the official award; provided that not more than forty per cent of any year's staff shall receive such award.

Sec. 7. Any person failing to finish the season with the respective group and the semester in school shall forfeit the award except in the event of unavoidable incapacitation, which is to be determined by the

award's committee.

Sec. 8. No person shall receive more than one award in athletics, or in forensics, or for Collegian service, or for participation in the band, or for Yell King, or for manager of athletics. For each award earned he shall receive a certificate specifying the fact. This certificate shall be proof of the right to wear such award.

Sec. 9. Each graduate who has received an award based upon intercollegiate activities shall be awarded on the last award day previous to graduation a parchment four inches by five inches, an which shall be a record of the awards earned in inter-

collegiate activities.

Sec. 10. There shall be three award days. The first shall be for all men who did not receive a letter and sweater because of freshmen standing, and shall be held as soon as possible after the opening of school in the fall. The second shall follow the football season as soon as practical. The third shall be late in May at which time all the remaining A. S. W. U. awards shall be presented. The exact dates shall

be set by the awards committee for which purpose it will be composed of all officers concerned who were enumerated in Section 1 of this Article. The president of the A. S. W. U. shall be responsible for the

presentation of awards.

Sec. 11. Awards shall be presented only on regular award days and only to members of the A. S. W. U. Any student entitled to receive an award but who is not present at award ceremonies shall forfeit the right to receive said award until the next regular award day at which he is present; provided that this ruling may be suspended only in individual cases and only by action of the executive committee.

Article III-Freshman Glee

Sec. 1. An inter-class song contest called the Freshman Glee shall be held annually on the second Saturday in March. The contest shall be sponsored by the Freshman class and no admission shall be

charged.

Sec. 2. The glee shall be conducted by a manager elected by the Freshman class, who shall act under the supervision of a committee of three upper-classmen appointed by the president of the A. S. W. U. one of whom shall be designated as chairman. The four shall constitute the Freshman Glee committee.

Sec. 3. Words and music shall be composed within the class rendering the song and the song shall be rendered by the en-

tire class.

Sec. 4. There shall be three judges on each of words, music, rendition and adaptation. They shall be selected by the Freshman Glee committee and shall judge according to rules laid down by that committee.

Sec. 5. The Freshmen shall present the

winning class with the permanent Freshman Glee pennant upon which shall be pinned in the proper place a sterling silver pin which shall not be larger than 1% by

11/4 inches.

Sec. 6. The Freshman Glee committee shall decide before the regular A. S. W. U. meeting in May the type of song for the ensuing year. The type selected shall be published in the last and first issues of the Collegian for the year and announced at the last and first meetings of the A. S. W. U. of the year.

Article IV-Inter-class Rivalry

Sec. 1. Inter-class Rivalry Committee. Clause 1. There shall be an inter-class

rivalry committee elected each year, consisting of the following members: a chairman elected by the A. S. W. U. and one member elected by each of the classes.

Clause 2. The chairman of the committee shall be an upper classman and shall be elected at the first regular meeting of the A. S. W. U. for the year. The representatives of the classes shall be elected within the first two weeks of the school year.

Sec. 2. Duties.

Clause 1. The committee shall regulate and control all forms of inter-class rivalry including numeral painting and inter-class

disputes.

Clause 2. The following inter-class activities shall be held each year: basketball, tennis, baseball, forensics, Freshman Glee, and other activities that the committee shall decide upon. Percentage of class membership earning inter-collegiate awards for the year shall be counted an activity. In all activities first place shall receive five points, the second place three points, and the third place one point.

Sec. 3. Contestants.

Clause 1. Representatives of the classes must rate: for the seniors 88 credits, for the juniors 56, for the sophomores 24. Students carrying less than twelve hours shall not be eligible, provided that seniors carrying sufficient hours for graduation shall be eligible

Clause 2. The class having the highest number of points at the close of the year shall be the inter-class rivalry champion and shall receive a suitable award.

Article V-Willamette's Honor Code

Sec. 1. Code. For the purpose of perpetuating the spirit and practice of honor which Willamette University has always cherished as her ideal, the A. S. W. U. here by adopts the following standard of action to be considered as its tradition of honor. Dishonesty in examination, unfair work on notebooks and essays, improper use of library books and materials as well as property of other persons, and the employment of all illegitimate methods not herein specified shall be deemed opposed to Willamette's standard; and students guilty of such action shall be guilty of flagrant violation of the sacred traditions of the University.

Sec. 2. Enforcement.

Clause 1. Enforcement of this code shall be under the direct supervision of the executive committee, which shall appoint at its first meeting in October seven students, four of whom shall be seniors. two juniors, and one a sophomore. These shall constitute the Honor Code committee. The committee shall be called together by the president of the A. S. W. U. within seven days, at which time one of the committee shall be elected as chairman. The

committee shall organize further as it sees fit.

Clause 2. The Honor Code committee shall have charge of the enforcement of the Honor Code.

Clause 3. The executive committee may grant an appeal to the A. S. W. U.

Clause 4. All decisions shall be subject to review by the President of the University.

Article VI-Amendments

Amendments to these by-laws must have been read at a previous meeting, must have been posted for ten days, and must have been published in the Willamette Collegian before coming up for adoption at a regular meeting of the A. S. W. U. They must receive a two-thirds vote for adoption.

In order to prevent waste and to insure confidence and to promote business methods, the Executive Committee of the Associated Students created a budget system which will be operative in September, 1929, and will apply to all organizations. under the direction of the student body, which handle money.

There will also be appointed a Graduate Manager who shall be responsible to students and trustees for the proper conduct of all such business matters and to whom and by whom reports shall be made.

This is a proposed resolution which has not yet been incorporated in the constitution.

CHURCH DIRECTORY

Calvary Baptist-Court and High.

First Baptist-Liberty and Marion.

First German Baptist-Cottage and D.

Immanuel Baptist-Hazel and Academy.

St. Joseph's, Catholic-Cottage and Chemeketa.

St. Vincent De Faul, Catholic—2200 Myrtle.

First Christian-High and Center.

First Church of Christ Scientist-Chemeketa and Liberty.

Church of Christ-1489 N. Cottage.

Church of Cod-1346 N. Church.

First Congregational-Liberty and Center.

Knight Memorial, Congregational—Ferry and 19th.

St. Paul's, Episcopal—Church and Chemeketa.

First Evangelical-Liberty and Center.

Chemeketa Street Evangelical—Chemeketa and 17th.

Highland Friends-Highland and Church.

South Salem Friends-Commercial and Washington.

American Lutheran—Church, between Chemeketa and Center.

Christ Evangelical, Lutheran—State, between 17th and 18th.

St. John's, Lutheran-16th and A.

First Methodist-State and Church.

Center Street Methodist-Center and 13th.

Jason Lee Memorial, Methodist-Jefferson and N. Winter.

Leslie Methodist-Commercial and Myers.

Mill Street Methodist—Mill and 15th. West Salem Methodist—State and 3rd. Market Street Free Methodist—Market and N. Winter.

Church of the Nazarene—Breyman and 19th. First Presbyterian—Chemeketa and N. Winter.

Bethany Reformed—Capitol and Marion. Seventh Day Adventist—Gaines and 5th. First Unitarian—Chemeketa and Cottage. First United Brethren—Mission and 12th. Castle Chapel, United Brethren—Nebraska and 17th

GO TO CHURCH

History records man as a being who worships. The desire to worship is universal. Among every people of whom we have record, signs of worship have been discovered. Let us develop and direct this instinct of worship.

Today, while attending college, most of us are away from home; yet the deep wish in the heart of every father and mother is that we remain true to the teachings of our youth. By home training and tradition we have some knowledge of the purposes and claims of religion. We believe that in the Bible man finds a standard whereby to guide his life. Religion in its broadest sense is life lived in all its relationships. Religion is the ballast which steadies man's life. Religion is friendship with God.

Willamette wishes to co-operate with the churches of Salem. We have included this church directory in the handbook with the special hope that the church going habit learned at home may not be lost at college.

TELEPHONE DIRECTORY

Lausanne Hall	602
Beta Chi	1442
Delta Phi	1378
Alpha Phi Alpha	1717
Sigma Tau	1401
Alpha Psi Delta	549
Kanna Gamma Rho	1074
President Carl G. Doney	1538
Dean Frank M. Erickson	62F3
Dean Olive M. Dahl	1464
Dean Olive M. Dahl	2315W
Eaton Hall	317
Gym	647
S. P. Station	. 41
O. E. Station	727
Stage Terminal	696
Kimball School of Theology	838
Statesman Office	500
Capital Journal Office	82
Salem Clinic, Dr. Downs	404
Student Body Office	2341
Willamette Library	617

Other Telephone Numbers

RECITATION SCHEDULE-FIRST SEMESTER

	Monday	Monday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday
7:45	" dine		come		Smos
8:40	5	12.64 B. R.	8	Phy Se	84.
9:35		G. X.		Rice	***************************************
10:30	desc.	Part.	Just	Park.	Sheet
11:25	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel
1:15					
2:10					
3:05					
4:00					

Chapel Seat.....

Gym No.

RECITATION SCHEDULE-SECOND SEMESTER.

7:45	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday
8:40					
9:35					
10:30					
11:25	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel	Chapel
1:15					
2:10				- 0	
3:05					
4:00					

Chapel Seat.....

Gym No.....

MEMORANDA

MEMORANDA

MEMORANDA



